REBUILDING AFTER

DISASTER

Everything you need to know to plan for a successful recovery.

INCLUDING INFORMATION ON:
What to expect from your local government
Who may help you recover
How to plan for your recovery
What types of resources are available to you
When to get help coping with trauma
Contact information for relief groups
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WHAT’S A FIRELILY?
Whether it’s a forest fire
or a flood, on nearly every
continent of the globe,
firelillies sprout up in the
immediate aftermath of
these impacts and are the
first plants to revive the
ecosystem. The firelily is one
of nature’s signs of renewal
and we hope it is for those
who read our guide, too.
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INTRODUCTION
Whether you’ve experienced a house fire or hurricane, the process of
recovering from a disaster can be confusing and frustrating. This guide is
a tool designed to give you the information you need to maintain your
sanity, get assistance, financial and otherwise, and generally manage your
own disaster recovery.
This information includes:
F W
 hat to expect during disaster recovery
F W
 hat to do in the first 72 hours following a disaster
F H
 ow to plan for a successful recovery
F D
 ifferent types of assistance you may encounter
F H
 ow to cope with trauma and help your family cope with trauma
F A
 directory of resources that may help you recover
You’ll see a few symbols in the resource guide as you go through it:

This indicates that more information
regarding this topic is on our website,
www.firelilyfund.com.

This symbol refers you to a tool
you can utilize in your recovery,
all of which can be found at
www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools.
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 We use this symbol when we’re
giving you a tidbit of advice!

Any program or service provided
by the Federal government is
indicated with this symbol.

F

F

F

F

F

F

T
 ab 1 contains basic information about disaster recovery,
including what to expect from the disaster recovery process,
what steps you should take in the first 24 hours following
disaster, and how multiple disaster recovery organizations work
together to help address your needs.
T
 ab 2 focuses on the fist 72 hours following a disaster.
Information in this section focuses on relocating, securing your
home, and applying for assistance.
T
 ab 3 outlines how to plan for your recovery. Important
information about tracking contacts, developing a budget,
identifying losses and damages, and working with contractors is
included.
T
 ab 4 identifies different types of assistance available following
a disaster and how you can best utilize these resources. Look at
page 58 for an overview on what Firelily is and why fundraising
is the quickest way to recover your losses!
T
 ab 5 aims to address the trauma experienced during a
disaster, identifying the signs and symptoms you and your family
should look for in those who may experience trauma-related
mental health issues and how to help them.
T
 ab 6 is a directory of disaster recovery resources that may be
available in your community.
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About Firelily

FIRELILY IS A WEBSITE DEDICATED TO
HELPING PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES
IMPACTED BY DISASTER RAISE
THE FUNDS NEEDED TO QUICKLY
RECOVER AND REBUILD THEIR LIVES.

We know how confusing and frustrating disasters are. You may have lost
your home, all of your belongings and are now being asked what your
plan is to rebuild not only your property, but your life. It’s overwhelming.
There is a lot to learn and a lot of questions to answer.
Here are Firelily we’ve experienced that overwhelming feeling. Firelily was
built because we had personal experience with disaster, either from living
through it ourselves or spending our career’s trying to help others recover.
We realized that the biggest question wasn’t necessarily how are we going
to rebuild, but how are we going to afford it?
There is a large gap between what a disaster costs and the financial
resources available to rebuild. Firelily attempts to fill this gap by providing
a place where you can ask for the help you need from the people who
want to help the most: your family and friends. Fundraising allows you
to identify your own needs, tell your story and get the financial and
emotional support you need during this difficult time.
But money isn’t enough. You also need information to help you utilize
those funds in a smart way. This guide provides information on what
to expect following a disaster, the right questions to ask those trying
to help and how to cope with the trauma you’ve experienced. It’s not
meant to answer every question but to provide you with a foundation
of information to start planning for your recovery. You can always find
additional tools on our website, www.firelilyfund.com.
We wish you all the best on your road to recovery.

Tamara Habib and Paul Lewis, Cofounders of Firelily
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THE BASICS
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What To Expect Following a Disaster
The key to maintaining your sanity during the disaster recovery process
is managing your expectations. But, what should you expect following a
disaster?

Expect the process to be
very slow.

There will be a lot of paperwork
to complete.

You’ll be overwhelmed with
information about assistance
programs and this may be
confusing.

Expect a lot of “hurry up
and wait.”

If your community was impacted
by a disaster as well, expect your
community leaders to be just
as lost as you are while they
develop their plan for recovery.

Learn more about what to expect at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#basics
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What is Emergency Management?
Emergency management is divided into four cyclical phases, ensuring
that communities proactively prevent the impacts of disaster while
simultaneously ensuring they are ready to respond and recover should a
disaster occur.

MITIGATION

PREPARDEDNESS

Hazard Analysis F
Vulnerability Assestment F
Infastrusture Work F
Public Education F

F

F
F

Economic Recovery F
Debris Management F
Housing F
Health & Social Service F

F
F
F
F

RECOVERY

 mergency Response
E
Planning
Training & Exercises
Partnership Building

Life Saftey
Incident Stabilization
Evacuation & Shelters
Mass Care

RESPONSE

Emergency management occurs from the ground up,
with local communities primarily responsible for
preparedness and response activities.
1.

First responders
implement
operations at
the disaster site.

4.
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2.

Local government
coordinates
the delivery of
resources to first
responders.

The Governor
declares a state
of emergency
in the impacted
community.

5.

3.

Neighboring
communities
respond to requests
for assistance and
resources.

FEMA determines
if Federal
assistance is
warranted.

The Difference Between
Response and Recovery
Response and recovery are two phases in the emergency management
cycle and may describe how disaster operations are progressing.

Response is the shortest
phase, representing the period
immediately following the
disaster when a community’s
basic needs, such as ensuring
community members have
food and shelter, are addressed.

Recovery is the phase
during which a community
transitions back to “normal
operations” by repairing and
rebuilding infrastructure and
bolstering the economy.

Although represented in different phases, response and recovery overlap.
Response is the short term efforts that stabilize a community immediately
following a disaster. Recovery also begins immediately following a disaster, but it lasts for much longer.

Recovery Period
Diaster
Happens

Preincident
State
Emergency
Response
TIME
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How Recovery Organizations
Work Together
Many organizations work together to ensure the successful recovery of
individuals and communities impacted by disasters. These organizations
work together to provide services and resources aimed at addressing your
needs. The number, type, and complexity of programs offered to you will
increase dependent on the size of the disaster in which you’re involved.

Small
Business
Administration

Local
Government
National
Non
Profits

Family
You
Friends
Local
Non Profits

FEMA
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American
Red Cross
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The Facts about Disaster Declarations
The governor of an
impacted state may request
Federal resources for
disaster response (search
and rescues, electrical power,
food, water, shelter).

The governor of an impacted state may
request Federal resources for disaster
recovery, releasing funding for public
facility and infrastructure repair,
as well as funding for individual
assistance (funds given to families
uninsured at the time of a disaster).

85%

of disaster declaration
requests by Governors
are approved by the
President/FEMA

FEMA funding
is primarily
reimbursable,
meaning the
community must
spend the funds and
then be reimbursed, at
which point FEMA

only reimburses

75%

of
the

costs and it is up to
the State and local
community to fund
the rest.

If house fires are included,
there are approximately

70,000

disasters

every year, of which less than
100 are declared disasters.
THE PROCESS FOR OBTAINING A
DISASTER DECLARATION:
Disaster
Occurs

A preliminary disaster assessment is
conducted to identify the magnitude
and impact of an event’s damage.

The Governor requests
a Presidential Major
Disaster Declaration.

The President signs
a Major Disaster
Declaration.

Federal programs are initiated.
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There are two different
types of declarations:

Presidential
Major Disaster
Declaration
and Emergency
Declaration.
The Emergency
Declaration is more
limited in scope and
is generally provided
to meet a specific
emergency need.

FIRST STEPS
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The First 72 Hours Following a Disaster
The immediate period following a disaster can be stressful, confusing, and
overwhelming. Although you may feel helpless, there are steps you can
take to seize control of your recovery.
During the 72 hours following the event:
q F ind access to food, water, and temporary shelter.
q S
 hut off the utilities at your home, if needed.
q D
 etermine if it is safe to enter your property by speaking with local
authorities such as the fire department.
q C
 ontact your loved ones to tell them you’ve experienced a disaster,
you are safe, and that you will need their help to recover.
q S
 ecure your property against vandalism and theft by boarding up
broken doors and windows.
q G
 ather important information needed to apply for disaster assistance.
q C
 ontact your insurance company about your losses and request that
the house be secured.
q D
 ocument your losses by creating a list of items damaged or
destroyed during the disaster.

 ontact FEMA by calling 800-621-3362 or visiting
C
www.fema.gov to apply for assistance if impacted by
a large disaster such as a hurricane.

If you’re unable to contact your loved ones via phone, you can
register with the American Red Cross “Safe and Well” website;
utilize Facebook’s Safety Check; or use Google’s People Tracker.
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Addressing Basic Needs
The most important step after a disaster is making sure you’ve got access
to shelter, food and water. Fortunately, there are many resources available
to address these needs in the short-term.

IMMEDIATE SHELTER
If you’re unable to stay in your home due to disaster-related damage,
you’ll need to find a place to stay immediately, but the question of where
can be daunting.

Consider the following sources for short-term, temporary shelter:

Many people choose to stay with family and
friends while finding temporary residence.

If you have the financial resources, staying at
a hotel for a few days may be an option.

Your local government, the American Red Cross,
or other nonprofit may open a shelter to house
displaced persons from disaster, depending on
the size of the event.

The popular home sharing website, Airbnb, is
now connecting people impacted by disaster
with those willing to share rooms or homes.
www.airbnb.com/disaster-response
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Addressing Basic Needs
TEMPORARY HOUSING
You may not be able to re-enter your home immediately after a disaster as
it is repaired or rebuilt. Once you’ve found immediate shelter, you should
start to consider where you’ll stay until you’ve found a permanent home.
Homeowners and renters insurance
temporary
1-2 YEARS ofhousing,
&
paying for the cost of rental and the

There are relocation
companies to assist you in
finding housing; ask your
insurance adjuster for a
recommendation. Or just

furnishings included.

do a simple online search!

typically includes relocation assistance for

If a disaster declaration is issued, funds may be available for
temporary housing. FEMA also has a program to provide
government-housing people displaced by disaster.

FOOD AND WATER
If you’re able to access your home but have no electricity, there are ways
to preserve your food and water for as long as possible.

1.

Eat the perishable
items in your
refrigerator, pantry,
or garden.

2.

Use foods from the
freezer. A full, wellinsulated freezer
will preserve food
for at least two days.

If you don’t have stored bottle water
in your home, immediately fill plastic
containers with pipe water to use in
the next couple of days. Ice cubes can
also be melted for water.

3.

Eat nonperishable
items.

Limit the number of
times you open the
freezer by postings
a list of it’s contents
on the door.

Don’t store water in bathtubs or milk jugs. The materials used
to make bathtubs contain chemicals that are unsafe to drink,
including lead. And, the residual milk proteins and lipids found in
milk jugs may contaminate the water.
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Gathering Your Information
In order to complete the paperwork required for the disaster recovery
process, you’ll be asked to provide a bit of information about yourself,
your family, and your property.
The majority of assistance applications require the following
information:
q C
 urrent contact information
q F ull legal name, date of birth, and Social Security Number of all
household members
q P
 roof of address for the affected property
(copy of mortgage statement, lease, utility bills)
q P
 roof of identity
(drivers license, State identification card, passport)
If you’re planning to submit an insurance claim, you’ll need the
following information:
q
q
q
q
q
q

C
 urrent contact information
A
 copy of your insurance policy or the policy number
D
 ate the damage occurred
D
 escription of losses and damages
D
 escription of other expenses resulting from the disaster
L
 ocation of the damaged property, within the home

 chedule your site visit immediately following the disaster and
S
when the claims adjuster arrives, be sure to have all of your
losses and damages identified. Completing these two steps
will ensure you have the speediest claims process possible.

“YOU HAVE TO JUMP INTO
DISASTER WITH BOTH FEET.”
– Chuck Palahniuk, Invisible Monsters

22 \ Firelily Resource Guide

Filing with Insurance
If you haven’t filed an insurance claim before, you may not know where to
begin. You’ll need to provide certain information when filing your claim.
q N
 ame
q A
 ddress
q P
 olicy number
q D
 ate and time of the disaster
Filing a Claim Occurs in Six Steps:
1.

C
 ontact your agent immediately so that they may arrange for an
adjustor to visit the property and assess the damage.

2.

M
 ake a detailed list of lost or damaged property, photographing and
videotaping if possible. Be sure to include cleaning and repair bills in
your estimates.

3.

P
 rotect your property from further damage or theft by securing your
home.

4.

M
 eet with the insurance adjustor to identify the scope of damage
and agree as to what needs to be repaired or replaced.

5.

S
 ettle your claim with the adjuster and receive payment.

6.

Contract

for the repair of your home or work with your insurance
company to find a contractor for your home.

Tools for tracking losses and damages as well as a checklist for insurance
claims can be found at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools

Insurance companies are required to provide you with a
complete copy of your policy, the policy number and claim
number, and your policy deductibles if requested.
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Securing Your Property
Following a disaster you’ll want to secure your property by shutting off
utilities and boarding broken windows and doors to prevent theft and
vandalism. There are many companies that exist to help you with this task,
but you may also choose to do it yourself.
There are guides to help you secure your home, if hiring a restoration
company is out of your budget. The Red Guide to Recovery, for example,
provides detailed diagrams for your use.

secure vacant BuildinG

erty

How to secure your prop
after a disaster

doors

Non-entry Doors

Outside

• Door thickness 3/4”
• Original existing door
removed & stored
inside the building

Carriage
bolts &
cut washers

Inside

very
tHe red Guide to reco

2×4s
spanned
across
opening

≤ 12”
from top
or bottom
of door
frame

2 bolts if door
opening > 3 ft.

Strongbacks
to be spaced
no more than
48” apart

How to Secure Your Property after a Disaster 5

Guides depicting how to secure your windows and doors may be found at:
www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools
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Securing Your Property
Large disasters overwhelm emergency responders, leaving homeowners
responsible for shutting off utilities. You can turn off natural gas, water,
and electric utilities if needed on your own using the following processes.
Gas Meter and Shut-Off Valve

Gas Meter

ON

OFF

Water Shut-Off Valve
Shut Off
this Valve

Water Line to the
House Plumbing

Incoming
Water Line

Electricity Breakers
q
q
q
Shut off
from bottom
ending with
main switch

Turn on
from top
starting with
main switch
q
q
q
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Protecting Yourself from Scams
Disaster generally brings out the best in people, but unfortunately there
are others who attempt to take advantage of the victims of disaster.
People try to take advantage of people impacted by disaster in the
following ways:
F O
 ffering contractor services without being licensed
F Gouging or inflating prices for repair work
F R
 emoving the debris from your property and placing it on a neighbor’s
property.
F Posing as government inspectors to obtain your personal information
F C
 ollecting money for fake charities or fundraisers in which donations
never reach the victims of disaster.

You can avoid being the victim of a scam with the following tips:

Always ask for
identification before
letting anyone on
your property

Never give credit card
or financial information
to strangers over the
phone or internet

Check to see if
the contractor you
are considering
is licensed.

ESTIMATE

Obtain several work
estimates before
signing a contract.
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Use a charity evaluator
to check the history and
identity of charitable
organizations.

PLANNING
FOR YOUR
RECOVERY
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Planning for your Recovery
After you’ve addressed your basic needs such as temporary housing and
secured your home, you’ll need to start planning for the financial impacts
of disaster. Planning for your recovery by tracking important details and
contacts, making a budget, and identifying potential funding sources for
repairs and rebuilding.

The planning process includes these steps:
1.

2.

3.
Recovery Budget

Determine
your losses and
damages.

Get quotes for the repair
work to be done or to
replace your items.

5.

4.

Complete
a recovery
budget.

6.

Tracking Tool

Apply Receive Start
for Aid
Aid
Rebuild
June 1

Identify
organizations that
provide financial
assistance.

Track the people
you talk to and
the information
they provide.

July 15

Aug 1

Make a timeline of
your recovery based
on the information
you receive.

7.
Complete your
recovery plan!

Find the tools you need to plan for recovery at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools
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Identifying Losses and Damages
Standard homeowners policies include separate coverage for the structure
of your home and the personal belongings within it.

Structural damage coverage applies to all parts of
your house and property.

Attic & Crawl Spaces

Tool Shed

Garage

The amount of coverage for personal belongings is generally 50% - 70% of
the amount of insurance you have on your structure.
Example: if you have $100,000 worth of insurance on your home then
$50,000 - $70,000 of your belongings would be covered.
Most of the time, it is your responsibility to create an inventory of your
belongings for the insurance company to receive full compensation.
This can either be an itemized inventory or a room-by-room inventory,
depending on what your company requires.

When creating your inventory:
F
F
F
F

U
 se photos of your home to help you identify items that should be listed
A
 sk friends and family to help you remember additional items
R
 e-create the floor plan of your home to job your memory
L
 ook up the items online to find the current price they’re being sold at

The Insurance Information Institute provides free home
inventory software at www.knowyourstuff.org

We’ve got a tool for that! Go to: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools to
download our Losses and Damages Tracking Tool.
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Selecting a Contractor
Wanting to get back to “normal” may make you very anxious when
beginning the repair and rebuilding process, but it’s during this time that
patience is most important. Taking time to select the right contractor may
help you avoid scams, costly delays, and going over your repair budget.
You should take the time to properly check the background of the
contractor to ensure they are licensed (if applicable), insured, and meet
general contractor standards.
Visit our website at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools to download our
Selecting a Contractor Tool and make sure you hire someone trustworthy
and efficient.

Contractor Standard

Points

A&E
Harris
Contracting Contractors

Sturdy
Building
Contractors

Contractor is licensed.
Yes, I have proof of license.

10

Yes, but I have no proof.

0

No, they are not licensed.

0

My state does not license
contractors.

0

10

0

0

5

10

10

10

10

0

25

20

20

Contractor is insured and
bonded.
Yes, they have workman’s
compensation and general
liability coverage.

10

Yes, they have general
liability coverage.

5

No, the contractor is not
insured.

0

The contractors
customers are satisfied.
I did not find any
complaints or disciplinary
actions taken.
No complaints have been
filed in the past 3 years.
There are complaints
about this contractor
within the past 3 years.

10

5
0

TOTAL SCORE
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The Recovery Budget
One of the most stressful parts of disaster recovery is the impact it has
on your finances. The amount of financial security prior to a disaster is
likely to be very different after. One way to manage the stress and anxiety
associated with money is to set a budget that compares your pre-disaster
spending to post-disaster spending in an effort to identify how much
you’ll need to cover repairs and other disaster-related expenses.

To create your budget you’ll:
1.

Identify your income and expenses prior to the disaster.

2.

Identify your income and expenses after the disaster.

3.

C
 ompare the pre- and post- disaster bottom lines to determine if
you’ll have enough money to cover your expenses.

4.

If you’re unable to cover your expenses, identify additional sources
of income such as disaster financial assistance or loans.

Budget Tools
Budget Summary

Expense
Prior to
Disaster

Estimated
Current
Budget

Actual
Budget
Month 1

Actual
Budget
Month 2

Comments/
Plans for
Change

Total Net Monthly
Income
Total Monthly
Expense
Bottom Line
If your “Bottom Line” is zero, your budget is balanced and your income is exactly enough to
cover your expenses.
If your “Bottom Line” is a positive number, your income is more than enough to cover your
expenses.
If your “Bottom Line” is a negative number, don’t panic! After a disaster, it’s not uncommon
for a budget that was balanced to be impacted due to increasing disaster-related expenses.
You might consider finding an additional source of income or cutting expenses. But we
hope you’ll also consider registering as a Fundraiser on Firelily to bridge the gap in your
budget and speed your recovery.

You can find the Budget for Disaster Recovery and a Tool for Calculating
Loan Payments at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools
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FEMA, Operation HOPE, and the American Red Cross have
partnered to create an Emergency Financial First Aid Kit that
provides great checklists on tracking important financial
information. Find it at: www.operationhope.org.
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Tracking Important Contacts
There are many resources available to people impacted by disaster and as
a result, you will find yourself speaking to a lot of different people about a
lot of different programs.
Even if you hadn’t just been through a traumatic experience, keeping
track of all the information provided to you would be difficult. We strongly
recommend that you track all of these contacts and the information they
give you to reference as you plan your recovery.
Below is an example of the type of information you should collect.

Important Details Tracking Tool
Document all the details from your conversations with governmental, insurance, and
non-profit organizations. Print out as many of these pages as you need.

Date/Time:

Name of Person
I spoke with:

Organization:

Contact
Information:

September 5, 2014
3:00 pm – 3:30 pm

John Smith

Small Business
Administration

555-999-5025
jsmith@sba.gov
www.sba.gov

Details to Remember:
Spoke to John about applying for a loan through the SBA. He said we’d have to apply for
a SBA loan to receive FEMA assistance, even if we have no intention of taking the loan. He
said they offer lower rates than First International here in town. He said he’s being sent
home but someone else will be there to represent the SBA.

You can find this Important Details Tracking Tool at: www.firelilyfund.com/
learn#tools
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RESOURCES
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Disaster Resources
The number and types of resources available to you after a disaster vary
depending on the type and size of the incident and whether or not it
a disaster declaration is issued by the President of the United States.
Resources have been categorized into the following needs:

Financial
Resources

Online
Fundraising

Home Repair or
Rebuilding Resources

Home Rental or
Purchasing Resources

Unemployment
Assistance Resources

Tax Relief
Resources

Legal Resources

Mental Health
Resources

Small Business
Resources

Information and links to the resources presented in this section may all be
found at: www.firelilyfund.com/learn#resources
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Financial Resources
Financial assistance may be what is needed most following a disaster,
particularly if you’re uninsured. Unfortunately, there are limited resources
for financial assistance.

Program

Overview

American Red Cross
Disaster Financial
Assistance

Limited financial assistance
for immediate needs such as
food, clothing, and shelter.

Nonprofit Grants

Grants to individuals and
families funded by donations
to local nonprofits following
disasters.

Eligibility Requirements

F All

disasters applicable.
provide proof of identity
and address

F Must


F Dependent


on nonprofit, type
of disaster, and amount of funds
available.

F Damaged


FEMA Individuals and
Households - Other
Needs Assistance

Grants for disaster-related
expenses and serious needs
for those who are uninsured.

Small Business
Administration
Personal Property
Loans

Provides loans of up to
$40,000 to replace or
repair personal property
such as clothing, furniture,
transportation, and
appliances

U.S. Department of
Treasury Savings
Bond Redemption
and Replacement

Allows bond owners to
redeem bonds prior to
the expiration of the initial
12-month holding period.

home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must be a U.S. citizen
F Primary residence must have
been impacted
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.
F Expenses

must exceed insurance
funds
F Damaged


home must be in an
area with a SBA or Presidential
disaster declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.
F Damaged


home must be in an
area with a Presidential disaster
declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.

We recommend that in addition to seeking these forms
financial assistance, you consider asking family and friends for
help through an online fundraiser. Visit www.firelilyfund.com
to start a fundraiser!
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Financial Resources
American Red Cross Disaster Financial Assistance
The American Red Cross provides financial assistance for immediate
needs such as food, clothing, and shelter. Generally this financial
assistance comes in the form of a debit card that can be used anywhere
major credit cards are accepted. They require that tobacco, alcohol, and
firearms not be purchased with the funds.
For more information, visit: http://www.redcross.org/find-help.

Nonprofit Grants
People are very generous during disaster and will often donate to
community nonprofits, such as the United Way or local foundations,
in hopes that the funds will reach those impacted. You can generally
find information on these funds through your local newspaper or by
contacting local government.
These funds are typically established at the time of disaster, so it is
impossible for us to provide information on availability and eligibility. But,
the process is generally the same.

THE PROCESS FOR RECEIVING NONPROFIT GRANTS:

People donate
to nonprofit.

Nonprofit identifies
needs of community
to distribute funds.

Impacted persons
apply for funds.

Nonprofit sends
money to
approved people.

Remember what we said about recovery being a slow process?
Expect it to take between 6 – 12 months for the nonprofits to
release these funds to impacted individuals and families.

Types of Assistance \ 39

Financial Resources
Individual and Households - Other Needs Assistance
The Other Needs Assistance provision provides grants for disaster-related
expenses and serious needs not covered by insurance. These needs may
include medical and dental expenses, funeral and burial costs, repair or
replacement of household items, repairing or replacing vehicles damaged
by the disaster, and moving or storage expenses related to the disaster.
The cost of National Flood Insurance Program group flood insurance may
also be covered if flood insurance is required.
For more information, visit: http://www.fema.gov/public-assistancelocal-state-tribal-and-non-profit/recovery-directorate/assistanceindividuals-and.

SBA Loans for Personal Property
Small Business Administration (SBA) funds are given in the form of
loans and therefore have to be paid back to the federal government.
Homeowners, renters and personal property owners are eligible to apply
for loans to recover from the losses of disaster if they are in a declared
disaster are or a contiguous county.
Personal property loans provide a homeowner or renter with up to
$40,000 to repair or replace personal property items such as furniture,
clothing, or automobiles damaged or lost in a disaster. The impacted
property must be your primary residence. These loans only cover
uninsured or underinsured property and can’t be used to replace
extraordinarily expensive or irreplaceable items such as antiques,
recreational vehicles, or furs.
For more information, visit: http://www.sba.gov/content/home-andpersonal-property-loans.

FEMA requires you apply for this loan prior to dispersal of any
funds from the Individuals and Households Program. Don’t
worry though, you only have to apply for the loan, not actually
take the money.
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Financial Resources
Savings Bond Redemption and Replacement
Savings Bond Redemption allows bond owners in areas with a presidential
disaster deflation to redeem bonds prior to the expiration of the initial
12-month holding period. There are about 40,000 financial institutions in
the United States that redeem savings bonds. Savings Bond Replacement
allows bond holders to request the replacement of missing bonds be
expedited, especially if they were destroyed by a disaster. The general
qualification for this program is that you have a bond that was destroyed
or live in an area affected by a presidentially-declared disaster.
For more information, visit: http://www.treasurydirect.gov/indiv/
research/indepth/ebonds/res_e_bonds_eereplace.htm.
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Home Repair or Rebuilding Assistance
If your home was damaged by a disaster, there are financial resources
available to help with the costs of repair and rebuilding, assuming you’ve
used insurance funds to the fullest extent possible.

Program

Overview

Eligibility Requirements
F Damaged

FEMA Individuals and
Households

Grants to repair property
damage not covered by
insurance.

FEMA Hazard
Mitigation Grant
Program

Funds may be used for
elevations above the base
flood elevation, structural
retrofits to prevent future
impacts from disaster, or
floodproofing a primary
residence.

Small Business
Administration Loans
for Real Property

Provides loans of up to
$200,000 to repair or restore
the primary residence to its
pre-disaster condition.

Rebuilding Together

Volunteers assist low-income
households with rebuilding
or repairing their homes
following disaster.

home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must be a U.S. citizen
F Primary residence must have
been impacted
F Must provide proof of identity
and address.
F Expenses must exceed insurance
funds.
F Damaged


home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.
F Expenses

must exceed insurance
funds.
F Damaged
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home must be in an
area with a SBA or Presidential
disaster declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.

F Homeowners


low-income

must classify as

Home Repair or Rebuilding Assistance
Individuals and Households Program
The Individuals and Households Program is the primary program for
FEMA assistance to families or individuals following a Presidential
disaster declaration. The program provides grants to those affected
by disasters whose needs cannot be met by other forms of assistance,
such as insurance or other Federal programs. There are several forms of
assistance available through this program:
REPAIR: Funds to repair property damage not covered by insurance.
Below is a list of repairs covered by FEMA assistance:
F S
 tructural parts of a home (foundation, outside walls, roof);
F W
 indows, doors, floors, walls, ceilings, cabinetry;
F S
 eptic or sewage system;
F W
 ell or other water system;
F H
 eating, ventilating, and air conditioning system;
F U
 tilities (electrical, plumbing, and gas systems);
F E
 ntrance and exit ways from the home, including privately owned
access roads, and;
F B
 locking, leveling and anchoring of a mobile home and reconnecting or
resetting its sewer, water, electrical and fuel lines and tanks.
REPLACEMENT: Funds are given to replace a disaster-damaged home in
unique cases.
SEMI-PERMANENT OR PERMANENT HOUSING CONSTRUCTION: In
very unusual situation, FEMA will provide funds for the construction of
a home. This typically occurs when other types of housing assistance are
not available
For more information, visit: http://www.fema.gov/public-assistancelocal-state-tribal-and-non-profit/recovery-directorate/assistanceindividuals-and.

FEMA only pays for the property to be in a safe, sanitary
condition; it does not pay to return a property to it’s predisaster condition. Make sure you apply for a Small Business
Administration loan for additional Federal repair funding.
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Home Repair or Rebuilding Assistance
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program - Individuals
The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program is designed to save lives and
protect property by mitigating against future disasters. The program
primarily serves individuals and businesses through property acquisition
or elevation. The HMGP program may provide funds to elevate homes
impacted by flooding, install structural retrofitting, or complete
floodproofing on your residence. FEMA provides 75% of the project
cost for all HMGP projects and the local jurisdiction or homeowner is
responsible for the remaining 25%.
For more information, visit: http://www.fema.gov/hazard-mitigationgrant-program.

SBA Loans for Real Property
Small Business Administration (SBA) funds are given in the form of
loans and therefore have to be paid back to the federal government.
Homeowners, renters and personal property owners are eligible to apply
for loans to recover from the losses of disaster if they are in a declared
disaster are or a contiguous county.
Homeowners may apply for a loan of up to $200,000 to repair or restore
the homeowner’s primary residence to it’s pre-disaster condition. The
loans are not for upgrades or to build an addition, unless it’s required by
your local jurisdiction. For example, you can’t use the money to build the
deck you’ve always wanted, but you can use the funds to elevate your
home following a flood. If that’s the case, then the SBA may increase the
amount you can borrow by 20% to protect the damaged property from
future disasters.
For more information, visit: http://www.sba.gov/content/home-andpersonal-property-loans.

Unsure of how much it’ll cost you to borrow money from the Federal
government? Check out our Loan Calculator to determine your payments!
www.firelilyfund.com/learn#tools
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Home Repair or Rebuilding Assistance
Rebuilding Together
Rebuilding Together is a national organization that is focused on assisting
low-income households with disaster recovery. Rebuilding Together
volunteers assist homeowners with rebuilding and repairing their homes
following a disaster.
For more information, visit: http://rebuildingtogether.org/whatwedo/
how-we-help/disaster-recovery/.
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Home Rental or Purchase Resources
There are circumstances under which you’ll need to rent or purchase a
new home if yours was destroyed or you’re no longer allowed to rebuild
in the area due to new regulations. This can occur following flood events
in which the local jurisdiction determines its too dangerous to build in
the area due to increased potential for another event. This may also occur
if you’re renting and your landlord decides not to rebuild the property,
leaving you without a place to return to.

Program

Overview

Eligibility Requirements

F Damaged

FEMA Individuals
and Households
(Temporary Housing)

Funds provided for temporary
housing.

FEMA Hazard
Mitigation Grant
Program

Grant program to purchase
your property at market value
and turn the land to green
space in an effort to avoid
future losses.

home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must be a U.S. citizen
F Primary residence must have
been impacted
F Must provide proof of identity
and address.
F Expenses must exceed insurance
funds.
F Damaged


home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.

F Damaged


FEMA Housing Portal

Assists individuals and
families displaced by disaster
in finding a place to live.

U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban
Development Section
203(K) Loan Program

Allows those who have lost
their homes in a disaster to
finance the purchase of a
new home or refinance an
existing mortgage with repair
costs into a single mortgage.
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home must be in a
county with a Federal disaster
declaration.
F Must

be a U.S. citizen
F Must

provide proof of identity
and address.

F Must


use the mortgaged
property as their primary
residence
F Must

be considered for an FHA
insured mortgage through FHA
approved lenders

Home Rental or Purchase Resources
Individuals and Households Program
The Individuals and Households Program is the primary program for
FEMA assistance to families or individuals following a Presidential disaster
declaration. The program provides grants to those affected by disasters
whose needs cannot be met by other forms of assistance, such as
insurance or other Federal programs. Grants may be offered up to $31,900.
There are several forms of assistance available through this program:
TEMPORARY HOUSING: Money for rental assistance or other temporary
housing.
For more information, visit: http://www.fema.gov/public-assistancelocal-state-tribal-and-non-profit/recovery-directorate/assistanceindividuals-and.

You may re-apply for rental assistance if your initial allotment
runs out. Don’t hesitate to contact FEMA for more funds!

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program - Individuals
The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program is designed to save lives and protect
property by mitigating against future disasters. The program primarily
serves individuals and businesses through acquisition or elevation. The
HMGP program provides funds to a local jurisdiction impacted by disaster
to acquire damaged properties and turn them into open space, providing
pre-disaster compensation to the property owner and allowing them
to recoup financial losses. FEMA provides 75% of the project cost for all
HMGP projects and the local jurisdiction or homeowner is responsible for
the remaining 25%.

Most FEMA programs don’t provide financial assistance
for second homes. The good news is that second homes
are eligible under the HMGP program. Talk to you local
community representative for more information.
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Home Rental or Purchase Resources
FEMA Housing Portal
The FEMA Housing Portal assists individuals and families displaced by
disaster in finding a place to live. The portal acts as a rental website,
consolidating rental resources to make it easier to find rental units
in your area. The rental resources identified are those provided by
federal agencies such as the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Anyone with access to the internet can view the Housing
Portal. Rental units found utilizing the Housing Portal are paid for directly
by FEMA.
To view the Housing Portal, visit: http://www.benefits.gov/benefits/
benefit-details/4633.

Section 203(K) Loan Program
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Section 203(K)
program allows those who have lost their homes to finance the purchase
or refinance of a house along with its repair through a single mortgage.
It also allows homeowners who have damaged houses to finance the
rehabilitation of their existing single-family home. The types of rehab
that may be eligible includes structural reconstruction, modernization
and improvements to the homes function, elimination of health and
safety hazards, changes that improve appearance, replacing plumbing,
installing a well or septic system, adding or replacing roofing, gutters, and
downspouts, major landscape work, and making energy conservation
improvements.
For more information, visit: http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/
program_offices/housing/sfh/203k/203k--df.

48 \ Firelily Resource Guide

Home Rental or Purchase Resources
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Unemployment Assistance
A disaster may not just impact your personal property but also your
employment. If a disability associated with disaster renders you unable
to complete your work, you may be eligible for additional assistance.
Additionally, if the facility where you work is damaged or destroyed by
the disaster and you’re unemployed as a result, you may be eligible for
assistance.

Disaster Unemployment Assistance
FEMA provides benefits to previously employed or self-employed
individuals who lose their jobs as a direct result of a disaster and are not
eligible for other federal or state unemployment compensation. The
Disaster Unemployment Assistance program, is administered by the
Department of Labor through existing unemployment compensation
agencies. The minimum weekly benefit is required to be half of the
average weekly unemployment compensation for the state where the
disaster occurred. This assistance is available as long as the disaster
occurs, but no longer than 26 weeks following the disaster. Applicants
must apply within 30 days of the state announcing funding availability.
For more information, visit: http://workforcesecurity.doleta.gov/
unemploy/disaster.asp.

If you miss the 30-day deadline because of extenuating
circumstances, don’t hesitate to apply! You can apply up to 26
weeks following the disaster declaration as long as you have an
explanation for why you didn’t apply earlier.

National Emergency Grants
These grants funds are provided by the Department of Labor to employ
dislocated workers in temporary jobs following a disaster. The funds are
generally made available to a local employment center who then find
jobs for the dislocated workers. An individual may earn up to $12,000,
excluding the cost of benefits, and be employed for either six months or
1,040 hours.
For more information, visit: http://www.doleta.gov/neg/apply_neg.cfm.
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Tax Relief
Tax Relief in Disaster Situations
The Internal Revenue Service offers several exceptions and extensions
for those impacted by disaster. Individuals and businesses located in
areas in major disaster declarations are allowed extra time (four years for
homes and two years for business property) to replace property due to
involuntary conversion, such as destruction from wind or floods, theft, or
property ordered to be demolished. Casualty losses can also be deducted
against income in the prior year and certain disaster relief grants are not
taxable. Disaster relief payments for certain expenses are not subject to tax
either.
For more information, visit: http://www.irs.gov/uac/Tax-Relief-inDisaster-Situations.

In some cases, the IRS allows tax-filing extensions for disasterimpacted areas. Check with your local jurisdiction to see if one
has been extended for your area.

You may have lost important documents used to complete your taxes in
the disaster. Here are a few tips for reconstructing your records:
F

F

F

F

F

C
 ontact your title company, escrow company or real estate broker for
copies of your escrow papers.
G
 et a copy of your current property tax statement from your county
assessor’s office.
C
 heck with the mortgage company for a copy of an appraisal of your
property.
F ile Form 4506, Request for Copy of Tax Return, as soon as possible to
request copies of your federal income tax returns.
C
 all your car dealer to ask for a copy of your contract for information on
the value of your vehicle.
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Disaster Legal Services
Disaster Legal Services
This program offers free legal assistance to individuals affected by a major
federal disaster. Areas in which you may need legal assistance include
insurance claims, preparing powers of attorneys, help with guardianships,
and preparing new wills and other lost legal documents.
For more information, visit: http://www.disasterlegalaid.org.
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Mental Health Resources
Traumatic experiences impact each person differently, as we cover in
Section 5: Coping with Trauma. If you experience difficulty coping with
trauma, the following resources may be available to you and have no
associated requirements with seeking help.

American Red Cross
The American Red Cross provides mental health services to communities
impacted by disaster. Mental health professionals serve as volunteers and
respond to speak with individuals about their experiences. The American
Red Cross also offers psychological first aid training to those working with
individuals impacted by disaster.
For more information, visit: www.redcross.org.

Brethren Disaster Ministries
Brethren Disaster Ministries Children’s Disaster Services program meets
the needs of children impacted by disaster by setting up temporary child
care centers and using therapeutic activities and toys that stimulate
imaginative play. Specially trained and certified volunteers provide a
calm, safe and reassuring presence for children, as well as individualized
consultation for parents about their child’s unique emotional needs.
For more information, visit: http://www.brethren.org/cds/.

Catholic Charities
The Catholic Charities USA Disaster Response is the organization that
unites the social services agencies operated by most of the 175 Catholic
dioceses in the United States. The Disaster Response section of Catholic
Charities USA provides assistance to communities in addressing the
crisis and recovery needs of local families. Catholic Charities agencies
emphasize ongoing and long-term recovery services for individuals and
families, including temporary housing assistance for low income families,
counseling programs for children and the elderly, and special counseling
for disaster relief workers.
For more information, visit: http://catholiccharitiesusa.org/oursolutions/programs/.
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Mental Health Resources
Lutheran Disaster Response
The Lutheran Disaster Response (LDR) provides for immediate disaster
response, in both natural and technological disasters, long-term rebuilding
efforts, and support for preparedness planning through synods, districts,
and social ministry organizations. The disasters to which LDR responds
are those in which needs outstrip available local resources. LDR provides
crisis counseling, support groups, mental health assistance, and pastoral
care through its accredited social service agencies.
For more information, visit: http://www.elca.org/en/Our-Work/Reliefand-Development/Lutheran-Disaster-Response/How-We-Work.

Nazarene Disaster Response
The Nazarene Disaster Response provides clean-up and rebuilding
assistance, especially to the elderly, disabled, widowed, and those
least able to help themselves. In addition, a National Crisis Counseling
Coordinator works into the recovery phase by assisting with the
emotional needs of disaster victims.
For more information, visit: http://www.usacanadaregion.org/
compassion-disaster-response.

The Salvation Army
The Salvation Army provides emergency assistance including mass and
mobile feeding, temporary shelter, counseling, missing person services,
medical assistance, and distribution of donated goods including food,
clothing, and household items. It also provides referrals to government
and private agencies for special services.
For more information, visit: http://disaster.salvationarmyusa.org
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Mental Health Resources
Disaster Distress Helpline
The Disaster Distress Helpline was established by the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration to provide a consistent source
of mental health services to those impacted by disaster. Those needing
someone to talk to can reach trained crisis counselors by phone call or
text message to get help and support. The service is available 24 hours a
day, 7 days a week, year-round and is free (standard data/text messaging
rates may apply for texting services).
Call 1-800-985-5990 or text “TalkWithUs” to 66746 to speak with a crisis
counselor.
For more information, visit: http://disasterdistress.samsha.gov
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Small Business Resources
An estimated 25 percent of small businesses do not re-open when
impacted by a major disaster. The economic impact this has on
communities and the inidivudals who own these businesses can be
catastrophic. Fortunately, there are resources to assist you if your small
business is impacted by a major disaster.

Economic Injury Disaster Loans
This Small Business Administration program assists small businesses
experiencing economic losses as a result of disasters by offering loans
and loan guarantees. Businesses are eligible if located in disaster areas
declared by either the President, the Small Business Administration, or the
Secretary of Agriculture. The maximum loan amount is $2 million, may be
taken for up to 30 years, and there is no matching requirement.
For more information, visit: http://www.sba.gov/content/economicinjury-disaster-loans.

Physical Disaster Loans - Businesses
The Small Business Administration provides loans to businesses, small and
large, in declared disaster areas for uninsured physical damage and losses.
Businesses may take loans for up to $2 million at a rate of no more than
4% or 8% if you’ve got credit elsewhere. The loans may be used for repair
or replacement of real property, machinery, equipment, fixtures, inventory,
and leasehold improvements, however they cannot be used to upgrade or
expand a business.
For more information, visit: http://www.sba.gov/content/businessphysical-disaster-loans.
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Small Business Resources
Emergency Loans for Farms
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Farm Service Agency provides lowinterest emergency disaster loans to farmers in declared disaster areas
or in neighboring counties. These funds may be used to help farmers,
ranchers, and aquaculture producers recover from production losses,
such as crops, or physical losses, such as repairing or replacing damaged
equipment. A qualified applicant ca borrow up to 100% of actual losses at
an interest rate as low as 3.75%.
For more information, visit: http://www.fsa.usda.gov/FSA/
webapp?area=home&subject=fmlp&topic=efl
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Online Fundraising
One type of resource that’s becoming more popular is online fundraising,
used to solicit donations from family and friends interested in aiding in
your recovery. Online fundraising, or crowdfunding as it’s referred to by
some, is simple and has a lot of benefits, especially when paired with
other traditional financial assistance.
Benefits of Fundraising
F A
 llows you to identify your needs
F P
 rovides a place to tell your story
F Q
 uickly provides you with money to spend on recovery

Our home was destroyed in
a house fire. We need your
help to rebuild!

You create a profile.

You share it with family
and friends via email
and social media.

I want to donate:
$100
$25

3$50
Other

They donate to your
fundraiser.

Then, the funds are
deposited into your bank
account for immediate use.

Fundraise now at: www.firelilyfund.com
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Coping with Trauma
Trauma is defined as an experience that is deeply distressing or disturbing.
Disasters, whether they be human caused, such as a school shooting, or a
natural event, such as a tornado or flood, are traumatic events both to the
people who experience them directly and people who experience them
indirectly through television or other sources.
Coping with trauma can be difficult, especially if you’re caring for others.
Experiencing a physical or emotional response to trauma (see Signs
and Symptoms Following a Traumatic Event) is normal, but everyone
experiences and copes with trauma in different ways.

By connecting
with other
survivors

By crying

By exercising

By laughing

By praying or
meditating

By listening
to music

Reactions to trauma may last weeks, months, and in some cases years.
The key to coping is connecting with others by asking for help, support,
understanding, and opportunities to talk.

Having a bad day? Eat warm turkey, boiled onions, baked
potatoes, or cream-based soups for a quick pick-me-up! The
tryptophane in these foods will give you a tired but good feeling.
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Signs and Symptoms
following a Traumatic Event
Experiencing an emotional response to trauma is expected; when
the following signs and symptoms are observed, though, professional
treatment should be considered.

ected
al numbness, feeling disconn
3 E motion
s
ing
feel
nce
erie
inability to exp
or an

cing shock, denial, guilt
3 E xperien
-blame
or self

3 E xtreme sadness, crying
3 I rritabiliiffety,renanxceiousness, nervousness,
or ind

3 N ightmantres or recurring memories about
the eve

ing from social interaction,
3 W ithdraw
ships
n, or strained personal relation
isolatio

3 U nexplai, ornedlossachofeseneandrgypains, nausea,
fatigue

3 C hangess in eating habits or sleeping
pattern

3 I ncreased alcohol consumption or drug use

The American Red Cross has disaster mental health professionals
at the ready to speak with those who’ve experienced a traumatic
event. Find your local office at: www.redcross.org.
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Children’s Reactions to Trauma
Children’s reactions to trauma are strongly influenced by adults’ responses
to trauma, but they often manifest themselves in different ways. In fact,
some children are more likely than others to experience difficulties
following a disaster.

Children’s reactions may be affected by the following factors:
F

F

F

F

F

T
 he level of impact on a child’s daily life – if the child lost a loved
one or pet, or is forced to relocate they are more likely to experience
traumatic reactions
H
 ow well parents and caregivers are coping – it’s important for adults
to be physically and emotionally available to their children after a
disaster
T
 heir personality and temperament – a child’s behavior and coping
mechanisms will be exaggerated following a disaster
G
 ender – males are more likely than females to exhibit behavior issues
as a result of trauma
D
 emographics – Other stressors, such as financial difficulties or
problems at home will limit a child’s ability to cope

The actual experience during the disaster will also dictate a child’s
reactions to trauma. If the child was scared that they would get hurt or die
during the event, witnessed the loss of a loved one of pet, was separated
from a family member, or lost their home or belongings during a disaster
they are more likely to experience the signs and symptoms of trauma.

The American Academy of Pediatrics has a host of resources
for identifying if your child is having trouble coping with
trauma. Visit their website at: www.aap.org.
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Signs and Symptoms of
Trauma in Children
Children’s reactions to trauma differ by age. If these signs and symptoms
are observed, consider seeking professional help.

Children age 5 and under may react in a number of ways
including:
F
F
F
F
F
F

Showing signs of fear
Clinging to parent or caregiver
Crying or screaming
Whimpering or trembling
Moving aimlessly
Becoming immobile

F

F
F
F

R
 eturning to behaviors common
to being younger
Thumbsucking
Bedwetting
Being afraid of the dark.

Children age 6 to 11 may react by:
F
F

F

F
F
F
F
F
F

Isolating themselves
Becoming quiet around friends,
family, and teachers
H
 aving nightmares or other sleep
problems
Refusing to go to bed
Becoming irritable or disruptive
Having outbursts of anger
Starting fights
Being unable to concentrate
Refusing to go to school



F

F
F
F

F
F

F

C
 omplaining of physical
problems
Developing unfounded fears
Becoming depressed
E
 xpressing guilt over what
happened
Feeling numb emotionally
Doing poorly with school and
homework
Losing interest in fun activities.



Adolescents age 12 to 17 may react by:
F

F

F
F

H
 aving flashbacks to the event
(flashbacks are the mind reliving
the event)
H
 aving nightmares or other sleep
problems
Avoiding reminders of the event
U
 sing or abusing drugs, alcohol,
or tobacco

F

F
F
F
F
F

B
eing disruptive, disrespectful, or
behaving destructively
H
 aving physical complaints
Feeling isolated or confused
B
eing depressed or angry
Losing interest in fun activities
Having suicidal thoughts.

Adolescents may feel guilty. They may feel guilt for not preventing injury
or deaths. They also may have thoughts of revenge.
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Helping Children Cope with Trauma
It is very difficult to see your child in pain. There are things you can do to
help them cope as well as things you should avoid.

Do:
 e honest about what
3B

3
3
3
3

3

happened, that it was not their
fault, and that you love them
T
 ell them it’s okay to be upset
A
 llow children to cry or be sad
L
 isten to them talk about their
feelings
L
 et them express their feelings
by writing or through drawing
and art
T
 alk to them about your own
feelings

Don’t:
 ush or pressure children to
7R
talk before they are ready
 et angry with them for being
7G

emotional or reacting badly
 e upset if they begin refusing
7B

to go to school, bedwetting, or
acting out
 ompare one child’s reaction
7C
to the disaster with another
child’s

If you are concerned about your child or if emotional and behavioral
problems continue for more than six weeks, contact a mental health
professional.

The Disaster Distress Helpline is a free, 24-7 service that
provides trained crisis counselors to speak with. If you or a
member of your family are experiencing distress as a result of
disaster, call 1-800-985-5990 or text “TalkWithUs” to 66746.
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Directory
The following organizations represent a plethora of services provided
during disaster recovery. The availability of these services is dependent
on the size of the disaster and the community in which you live. The
directory’s purpose is to provide the contact information and website for
these services.

Check out the Resources Section on the Firelily website for short descriptions
of the agencies provided in this section. Vist: www.firelilyfund.com/
learn#resources
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Nonprofit Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

National Voluntary
Organizations Active in Disaster

www.nvoad.org

(703) 778-5088

Adventist Commnity Service
American Baptist Men
American Radio Relay
League / Amateur Radio
Emergency Service
American Red Cross
Ananda Marga Universal
Relief Team
Brethren Disaster Ministries
Catholic Charities
Christian Disaster Response

www.communityservices.org
www.abc-usa.org

www.arrl.org

www.redcross.org

www.amurt.net

(301) 984-0217

www.brethren.org

(800) 451-4407

www.catholiccharitiesusa.org
www.cdresponse.org

(941) 956-5183

www.crcna.org

(800) 552-7972

Churches of Scientology
Disaster Response

www.volunteerministers.org

(202) 667-6404

Church World Service

www.churchworldservice.org

Christian Reformed World
Relief Committee

City Team Ministries

Disaster Psychiatry Outreach
Episcopal Relief and
Development
Feeding America
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www.cityteam.org/
disasterresponse

(408) 232-5600

www.disasterpsych.org

(212) 598-9995

www.er-d.org

(800) 334-7626

www.feedingamerica.org

(800) 771-2303

Nonprofit Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

www.feethechildren.org

(405) 945-4084

www.friendsdisasterservice.net

(330) 332-2381

www.habitat.org

(800) 422-4828

www.operationhope.org

(877) 592-4673

www.hsus.org

(202) 452-1100

www.internationalaid.org

(800) 968-7490

www.ird-dc.org

(703) 248-0161

Latter Day Saints Charities

www.lds.org

(801) 240-5567

Luthern Disaster Response

www.ldr.org

(800) 637-3522

www.mds.mennonite.net

(717) 859-2210

National Emergency
Response Team

www.nert-usa.org

(888) NERT-USA

National Organization for
Victim Assistance

www.trynova.org

(800) TRY-NOVA

Nazarene Disaster Response

www.ndrusa.org

(877) 626-4145

www.ob.org

(757) 226-3401

www.pcusa.org

(800) 872-3283

www.salvationarmyusa.org

(800) 728-7825

Samaritan’s Purse

www.samaritans.org

(828) 262-1980

Save the Children

www.savethechildren.org

(202) 640-6600

Feed the Children
Friends Disaster Service
Habitat for Humanity
Operation HOPE
Human Society of the
United States
International Aid
International Relief and
Development

Mennonite Disaster Services

Operation Blessing
Presbyterian Disaster Assistance
The Salvation Army
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Nonprofit Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

www.namb.net

(800) 462-8657

Taiwan Buddhist Tzu Chi
Foundation

www.ustzuchi.org

(909) 447-7799

United Church of Christ Wider Church Ministries

www.ucc.org

(216) 736-2100

United Jewish Communities

www.ujc.org

(212) 284-6500

www.umcor.org

(800) 554-8583

United Way

www.liveunited.org

(866) 404-5826

World Vision

www.worldvision.org

(888) 511-6548

Southern Baptist Convention

United Methodist
Committee on Relief
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Other Agencies
Organization
Disaster Legal Aid
United Policyholders

Website

Contact Information

www.disasterlegalaid.com

info@probono.net

www.uphelp.org

info@uphelp.org
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State Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

Alaska Division of
Homeland Security and
Emergency Management

www.ak-prepared.com

(907) 428-7000

Arizona Division of
Emergency Management

www.dem.azdema.gov

(800) 411-2336

Arkansas Department of
Emergency Management

www.adem.arkansas.gov

(501) 683-6700

www.calema.ca.gov

(916) 845-8506

www.dhsem.state.co.us

(720) 852-6600

www.ct.gov/demhs

(860) 256-0800

www.dema.delaware.gov

(302) 659-3362

dcema.dc.gov

(202) 727-6161

floridadisaster.org

(850) 413-9969

www.gema.state.ga.us

(404) 635-7000

Hawaii State Civil Defense

www.scd.hawaii.gov

(808) 733-4300

Idaho Bureau of Homeland
Security

www.bhs.idaho.gov

(208) 422-3040

Illinois Emergency
Management Agency

www.state.il.us/iema

(217) 782-2700

www.ai.org/sema/index.html

(317) 232-3986

California Emergency
Management Agency
Colorado Division Homeland
Security and Emergency
Management
Connecticut Office of
Emergency Management
Delaware Emergency
Management Agency
District of Columbia Emergency
Management Agency
Florida Division of
Emergency Management
Georgia Emergency
Management Agency

Indiana State Emergency
Management Agency
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State Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

www.iowahomelandsecurity.org

(515) 725-3231

www.kansastag.gov/kdem_
default.asp

(785) 274-1409

www.kyem.ky.gov

(800) 255-2587

www.gohsep.la.gov

(225) 925-7500

Maine Emergency
Management Agency

www.maine.gov/mema

(207) 624-4400

Maryland Emergency
Management Agency

www.mema.state.md.us

(410) 517-3600

Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency

www.state.ma.us/mema

(508) 820-2000

www.michigan.gov/emhsd

(517) 333-5042

www.hsem.state.mn.us

(651) 201-7400

Mississippi Emergency
Management Agency

www.msema.org

(800) 519-6362

Missouri Emergency
Management Agency

sema.dps.mo.gov

(573) 526-9100

montanadma.org/disasterand-emergency-services

(406) 324-4777

www.nema.ne.gov

(402) 471-7421

www.dem.state.nv.us

(775) 687-0300

Iowa Homeland Security &
Emergency Management
Division
Kansas Division of
Emergency Management
Kentucky Emergency
Management
Louisiana Office of
Emergency Preparedness

Michigan State Police,
Emergency Management &
Homeland Security Division
Minnesota Homeland
Security and Emergency
Management Division

Montana Division of Disaster
& Emergency Services
Nebraska Emergency
Management Agency
Nevada Division of
Emergency Management
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State Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

New Hampshire Office of
Emergency Management

www.nh.gov/safety/
divisions/bem

(603) 271-2231

New Jersey Office of
Emergency Management

www.ready.nj.gov

(609) 963-6900

New Mexico Department
of Homeland Security

www.nmdhsem.org

(505) 476-9600

New York State Emergency
Management Office

www.dhses.ny.gov/oem

(518) 292-2275

North Carolina Division of
Emergency Management

www.ncem.org

(919) 825-2500

North Dakota Department
of Emergency Services

www.nd.gov/des

(701) 328-8100

ema.ohio.gov

(614) 889-7150

www.ok.gov/OEM

(405) 521-2481

www.oregon.gov/OMD/
OEM/index.shtml

(503) 378-2911

Pennsylvania Emergency
Management Agency

www.pema.state.pa.us

(717) 651-2001

Rhode Island Emergency
Management Agency

www.riema.ri.gov

(401) 946-9996

South Carolina Emergency
Management Division

www.scemd.org

(803) 737-8500

South Dakota Office of
Emergency Management

www.oem.sd.gov

(605) 773-3231

Tennessee Emergency
Management Agency

www.tnema.org

(615) 741-0001

Ohio Emergency
Management Agency
Oklahoma Department of
Emergency Management
Oregon Emergency
Management
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State Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

Texas Division of
Emergency Management

www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem

(512) 424-2138

Utah Division of
Emergency Management

publicsafety.utah.gov/
emergencymanagement

(801) 538-3400

Vermont Emergency
Management Agency

www.dps.state.vt.us/vem

(800) 347-0488

Virginia Department of
Emergency Management

www.vaemergency.com

(804) 897-6500

State of Washington
Emergency Management
Division

www.emd.wa.gov

(800) 562-6108

West Virginia Office of
Emergency Services

www.dhsem.wv.gov

(304) 558-5380

Wisconsin Emergency
Management

emergencymanagement.wi.gov

(608) 242-3232

wyohomelandsecurity.state.wy.us

(307) 358-1920

Wyoming Homeland
Security Training Program
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Federal Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

www.emergency.
cdc.gov

800-CDC-INFO
(800) 232-4636

Federal Emergency
Management Agency

www.fema.gov

(800) 621-3362

Army Corps of
Engineers

www.usace.mil

(202) 761-0011

United States
Coast Guard

www.uscg.mil

(703) 313-5800

U.S. House of
Representatives

www.house.gov

(202) 224-3121

(202) 225-1904

U.S. Senate

www.senate.gov

(202) 224-3121

(202) 225-1904

U.S. Customs and
Border Protection

www.cbp.gov

(877) CBP-5511

(866) 880-6582

National Insitute
on Mental Health

www.nimh.nih.gov

(301) 443-4513

(866) 415-8051

Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services
Administration

www.samhsa.gov

(877) 726-4727

(800) 487-4889

www.healthfinder.gov

(240) 453-8280

www.uscis.gov

(800) 375-5283

(800) 767-1833

www.fema.gov/applyassistance

(800) 621-3362

(800) 462-7585

portal.hud.gov/
hudportal/HUD

(202) 708-1112

(202) 708-1455

Centers for
Disease Control
and Prevention

National Health
Information Center
U.S. Citizenship and
Immigration Services
FEMA Disaster
Assistance
U.S. Department of
Housing and Human
Services, Office of
Community Planning
and Development
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TDD/TTY

(800) 462-7585

Federal Agencies
Organization

Website

Phone Number

TDD/TTY

U.S. Department
of Labor

www.dol.gov

(866) 4-USA-DOL

(877) 889-5627

Internal Revenue
Service

www.irs.gov/uac/
Tax-Relief-in-DisasterSituations

(800) 829-1040

(800) 829-4059

www.va.gov

(800) 827-1000

(800) 829-4833

Environmental
Protection Agency

www.epa.gov

(202) 272-0167

(202) 272-0165

U.S. Department
of Agriculture

www.usda.gov

(202) 720-2791

National Weather
Service (NOAA)

www.nws.noaa.gov

(800) 638-8972

www.nrc.gov

(800) 368-5642

(301) 415-5575

www.floodsmart.gov

(888) 379-9531

(800) 720-1090

Small Business
Administration

www.sba.gov

(800) 827-5722

(704) 344-6640

U.S. Social Security
Administration

www.ssa.gov

(800) 772-1213

(800) 325-0778

www.usgs.gov

(703) 648-5953

(888) 275-8747

Department of
Veterans Affairs

U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory
Commission
National Flood
Insurance Program

U.S. Geological
Survey
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We’d like to acknowledge the following contributors to
Managing Your Recovery:
F

Various Chapters of the American Red Cross

F

Christian Burgess, Disaster Distress Helpline

F

Jaclyn Roszkowski, Inked Design Studio

F

Jason Scott, Corporation for National and Community Service

F

Sean Scott, The Red Guide to Recovery

F

Shawna Flavell, Editor

F

Tamara Palmer, Field Innovation Team

F

Tammy Karlgaard, Contributor
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Think we’re missing something here?
Send your feedback to us at: feedback@firelilyfund.com.
We’d love to hear from you!
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The information contained in this Resource Guide is solely intended
to serve as general guidance. The content provided throughout this
Resource Guide is for informational purposes only and should only be
consulted with the understanding that the authors are not herein engaged
in rendering legal, accounting, tax, or other professional advice and
services. As such, it should not be used as a substitute for consultation
with professional accounting, tax, legal or other competent advisers.
Before making any decision or taking any action, you should consult a
professional adviser on your specific needs and circumstances.
© Firelily 2014. All rights reserved.

/firelilyfund
@firelilyfund
/firelilyfund
To reach out with any questions or comments, please email us at:
info@firelilyfund.com
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ABOUT FIRELILY
Whether it’s a forest fire or a flood, on nearly every continent of the globe,
firelilies sprout up in the immediate aftermath of these disasters and are
the first plants to revive the ecosystem. The mission of Firelily is to provide
a platform where those impacted by disaster can tell their story and
identify their needs; where those who want to help can do so in a tangible
way; and where everyone can come to learn about disaster-related
resources, news, and policy. Every person who fundraises or contributes
through Firelily has control, eliminating the feeling of helplessness that
persists after a disaster.

Learn more by visiting our website:

www.firelilyfund.com

info@firelilyfund.com

